
AACHEN 

The mission house under the patronage of St. Alphonsus was esta­
blished by the recently erected province of Lower Germany (now 
Cologne) on 15th October 1859. The first superior was Father Johann 
Michael Benger. The community moved to its present site in 1862, 
where the church was built in 1864, being consecrated in the follow­
ing year. The community assumed charge of a parish in 1941. In the 
same year, 1941, the government compelled the Redemptorists to 
leave Aachen. House and church were destroyed during World War 
II, but have since been rebuilt. It closed in 1986. 
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ABADOEKONDRE 

· See Vice~province of Paramaribo 

ACCESSORY VOWS 

The addition of certain more specific vows to the three normal reli­
gious vows has been practised by a number of religious institutes, 
such as the Mercedarians, the Hospitallers of St. John of God and 
the Jesuits. The first Redemptorists who bound themselves by vow 
in the General Congregation of 17 4 3 added to the vow of poverty 
that of renouncing all offices and benefices outside the institute, and 
to that of obedience that of going on mission to the unbelievers. 

· These together with the vow of perseverance were included in the 
text of the rule submitted to the Holy See for approbation in 17 48. 
In the Pontifical Rule promulgated in 17 49 the vow to go on the 
foreign missions was o.tnitted at the request of Cardinal Spinelli, 
Archbishop of Naples. The renunciation of offices outside the Con­
gregation was suppressed by the General Chapter of 1967-1969. 
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AERTNYS Jozef 

Was born in Eindhoven on 15th January 1828. Coming to the Re­
demptorists, he had as his companion in the novitiate at St. Trond1 
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Belgium, Isaac Hecker, later to found the Paulists. He took his reli­
gious vows on 15th October 1846 and was ordained priest in Liege 
on 14th September 1854. From 1860 to 1898 he taught moral theo­
logy in the studendate of Wittem. In 1901 he was eo-founder of the 
periodical Nederlandsche Katholieke Stemmen for moral and pastoral 
studies. His Theologia moralis secundum doctrinam S. Alphonsi Li­
guori was published in 1886 and by the time of his death had been 
edited eight times. Later editions were prepared by Fathers C. Da­
men and J. Visser. Father Aertnys died in Wittem on 30th June 
1915. 

BIBLIOGRAPHY: 

BG, II, 9-11; Ill, 246; Enciclopedia Cattolica, Rome, I, 1948, 358. 

AFRICA 

The Redemptorists were invited in 1854 by the Sacred Congregation 
fbr the Propagation of the Faith to take charge of a vicariate aposto­
lic to be created by dividing the vicariate of the Two Guineas. At 
the time it was not possible to accept, and the Redemptorists did 
not come to Africa until in May of 1899 the Belgian province esta­
blished the mission of Matadi in the Bellgian Congo, now Zaire. 
Since then five vice-provinces have been established with Redempto­
rists from Belgium, France, Eingrand, Portugal, Spain ~nd Naples 
now working in Africa. 
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SH, 27 (1979) 425429. For further information see the bibliographies 
concerning the relevant vice-provinces. 

AGADES 

See Vice-province of Niamey. 

AGRIGENTO 

The house now under the patronage of St. Alphonsus was established 
on lOth December 1761 through the zeal and ability of the bishop, 
Mgr. Lucchesi, in circumventing the regalist laws of Naptles which 
forbade the foundation of new religious houses. Father Pietrci Piwlo 
Blasucci led the first community, which reached Sicily after a peri­
lous journey. On account of bitter local opposition it became neces-




